
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

JANUARY 13, 2020

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 13th of January, 2020 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the
City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota,
Texas 77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) Update on the May 2, 2020 City Election;

Actualizacion de las elecciones municipales del 2 de mayo de 2020

(b) Results from Home for the Holidays;

(c) Texas Birthday Bash update;

(d) Results from Blue Santa;

(e) Results from No Razor November event;

(f) Utility Department update;

(g) Foster Street Drainage update;

(h) Board and Commission update; and

(i) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests,
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or
sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community
events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be
attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after
the posting of the agenda.



5. Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and testimony regarding zoning
changes initiated by the Planning and Zoning Commission, changing the current
zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to M-1: light industrial district for
the properties legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 27, Acres 3.03, and A0046
J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open Space District to R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot
or larger, residential district for the properties legally described as, S8019 - River
Haven, block 1, Lot 3-1, Acres 1.26, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 2-1, Acres
7.7, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 1-1, Acres 14.619, and A0002 D Arnold,
Tract 34-2, Acres 10.84, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open
Space District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the
properties legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 18, Par 5, Acres 27.76 and
S8212 - Savensky Subdivision, Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas.

6. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 912-20,
changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to M-1: light
industrial district for the properties legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 27,
Acres 3.03, and A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, changing the current zoning
from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit,
2 acre lot or larger, residential district for the properties legally described as, S8019
- River Haven, block 1, Lot 3-1, Acres 1.26, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 2-1,
Acres 7.7, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 1-1, Acres 14.619, and A0002 D
Arnold, Tract 34-2, Acres 10.84, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open Space District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential
district for the properties legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 18, Par 5,
Acres 27.76 and S8212 - Savensky Subdivision, Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

7. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 667-20, in support of
proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and waiver of permit fees.

8. Consideration and possible action on Ordinance No. 913-20, Uniform Right-of-Way
management ordinance.

9. Consideration and possible action on appointments to boards and commissions.

10. Review the City of Navasota Quarterly Investment Report for quarter ending 12-
31-19.

11. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or a City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda.

Consent Items Are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of December,
2019;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of
December, 2019;



12. Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted by
Section 551.074, Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, concerning the
annual evaluation of the City Manager and possible amendment to the employment
agreement for the City Manager.

13. Reconvene in open session.

14. Consideration and possible action on Executive Session Item relating to Section
551.074, Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, concerning the annual
evaluation of the City Manager and possible amendment to the employment
agreement for the City Manager.

15. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 8TH OF JANUARY, 2020

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of meeting
of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and correct copy of
said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice in the glass
bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the Municipal Building as well
as in the bulletin board on the north side of the Municipal Building of the City of
Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public
at all times, and said notice was posted on the 8th of January, 2020 at 03:56
PM and will remain posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the
scheduled time of said meeting. Agendas may be viewed at
www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any time
deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under the
Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.084.

DATED THIS THE 8TH OF JANUARY, 2020

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

1-13-2020 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Received a request form from Jerry Fielder to address the City Council about the 

Livestock Ordinance Acreage Restrictions. 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

 Update on the May 2, 2020 City Election – Staff will provide information 

regarding the upcoming city election. 

 

 Results from Home for the Holidays – Staff will provide the results of “Home for 

the Holidays” 

 

 Texas Birthday Bash update – Staff will provide information and reminders about 

the Texas Birthday Bash. 

 

 Results from Blue Santa – Staff will provide the results of Operation Blue Santa. 

 

 Results from No Razor November event – Staff will provide results from the “No 

Razor November” event. 

 

 Utility Department update – Several utility projects are underway or recently 

completed, staff will provide an update on progress. 

 

 Foster Street Drainage update – The Foster Street drainage project is complete, 

and staff will provide information on the project as well as the work that needs to 

be done to finish improving the street drainage. 

  

 

5.  Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and testimony 

regarding zoning changes initiated by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 

changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to 

M-1: light industrial district for the properties legally described as A0046 J 

Moore, Tract 27, Acres 3.03, and A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, 

changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to R-

1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger, residential district 

for the properties legally described as, S8019 – River  Haven, block 1, Lot 3-



1, Acres 1.26, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 2-1, Acres 7.7, S8019 - River 

Haven, block 1, lot 1-1, Acres 14.619, and A0002 D Arnold, Tract 34-2, Acres 

10.84, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space 

District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the 

properties legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 18, Par 5, Acres 27.76 

and S8212 - Savensky Subdivision, Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 

The Planning & Zoning commission continues to follow the guidance of the 

Comprehensive Plan and rezone properties zoned A/O.  This area is on the west 

end of the City, mainly the River Haven subdivision along with a couple of other 

properties located east of River Haven. 

 

 

6.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 912-

20, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District 

to M-1: light industrial district for the properties legally described as A0046 

J Moore, Tract 27, Acres 3.03, and A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, 

changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to R-

1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger, residential district 

for the properties legally described as, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, Lot 3-1, 

Acres 1.26, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 2-1, Acres 7.7, S8019 - River 

Haven, block 1, lot 1-1, Acres 14.619, and A0002 D Arnold, Tract 34-2, Acres 

10.84, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space 

District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the 

properties legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 18, Par 5, Acres 27.76 

and S8212 - Savensky Subdivision, Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 

 The Planning & Zoning commission continues to follow the guidance of the 

Comprehensive Plan and rezone properties zoned A/O.  This area is on the west 

end of the City, mainly the River Haven subdivision along with a couple of other 

properties located east of River Haven. 

 

 

7.  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 667-20, in support of 

proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and waiver of 

permit fees. 

You previously approved a resolution supporting the proposed application and 

rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and waiver of permit fees, 

however, the resolution provided by the consultant had an error in the name of the 

owner.  This resolution corrects the error. 

 

 

8.  Consideration and possible action on Ordinance No. 913-20, Uniform Right-

of-Way management ordinance. 

 The City is responsible for the rights-of-way in the city, and most of the r-o-w’s 

contain city owned utilities, electric utilities and telecommunications.  It is 



important to have a process for allowing new installations or work to be 

performed in these r-o-w’s, and this ordinance provides for the requirement of a 

permit from the City to perform work, and for the company to provide as-built 

maps of the installation.  Staff is working to create a new layer in our GIS map 

showing these utilities as well, so the requirements to submit their maps will be 

helpful. 

 

 

9.  Consideration and possible action on appointments to boards and 

commissions. 

 During the appointments to boards and commissions in October, Todd Matthews 

name was inadvertently left off those wishing to be re-appointed.  Mr. Matthews 

is an active member of the airport advisory committee, and staff recommends 

placing him back on the committee. 

 

 

10.  Review the City of Navasota Quarterly Investment Report for quarter 

ending 12-31-19. 

 Staff strives to maintain the best return on investment with reserve funds.  Interest 

rates are still rather low, but staff and financial advisors continue to search for 

investments with the best return.  Reserves are healthy and continue to grow 

slightly. 

 

 

11.  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion 

and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by 

the Mayor or a City Councilmember, in which event the item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by 

the City Council as part of the regular agenda. 

Consent Items Are: 

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of December 

2019; 

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of 

December 2019; 

 

 

12.  Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as 

permitted by Section 551.074, Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, 

concerning the annual evaluation of the City Manager and possible 

amendment to the employment agreement for the City Manager. 

 

 

13.  Reconvene in open session. 

 

 

 



14.  Consideration and possible action on Executive Session Item relating to 

Section 551.074, Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, concerning the 

annual evaluation of the City Manager and possible amendment to the 

employment agreement for the City Manager. 

 

 

 

Calendar of Events 

 

January 13th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.     Municipal Building 

 

January 17th     TCMA Region 7 meeting 

     TML Center, Austin 

 

January 18th     MLK Parade 

10:00 a.m. (line up begins at 9:00) Brosig Avenue 

 

January 20th     Martin Luther King Day 

     City Offices Closed 

 

January 27th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

January 28th     Downtown Revitalization Workshop 

10:00 a.m.    Navasota Center 

 

January 29th     B/CS Economic Outlook Conference 

     College Station 

 

January 30th     William “King” Cole training workshop  

Brad is a presenter   Austin, Texas 

 

January 31st     TCMA Board Meeting 

     TML Center, Austin 

 

February 7th     TCMA Region 6 Annual Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    The Woodlands 

 

February 10th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

February 24th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

 



February 27th& 28th    TCMA City Management Clinic 

     Granbury, Texas 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 

 





 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

S.M.A.R.T. GOAL SETTING SYSTEM 

Area Today’s Date Target Date Date Achieved 

City Council Retreat 10/2/19 2019-2020  
 

Goal Statement: A descriptive statement of the DESIRED OUTCOME. 
(a S.M.A.R.T. Goal is Specific, Measurable, Actionable, Responsible and Time-bound) 

 
The Management Connection, Inc. provided professional facilitation to the City of Navasota Council on 

September 4th, 2019. This document captures the Council’s direction to staff.  
 

 

Action Steps (List the specific actions you will take to achieve this goal) Target Date Who 
Percentage 
Completion 

Outcomes 

Direction from Council  
1. There needs to be a discussion on how to get 

state lawmakers to partner with the City.  
a. Potentially inviting Schwertner, 

Leman, and Kolkhorst to visit and 
tour the city  

b. Alan Bojorquez is creating a report 
card on all the legislature and looking 
for help 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

2. Figure out a way to speed up the billing 
cycle to reduce the lag time from end of 
month to bill date for payments 

a. We can make every period longer or 
each period 31 days—it will take a 
few years, but you’ll catch up 

b. Propose a staff member under Lance 
and Rita to handle all meters—Meter 
Maintenance Technician 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

3. The City Manager will do a cost benefit 
analysis on the Boys and Girls Club  

a. Benefit of having them in the 
community along with the mechanics 
of it to present to the council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

4. The Council will move forward with the 
concept of bonds for utility and street 
improvements  

a. Bonds will be broken into three-year 
small increments 

i. Focus will be on high traffic 
roads first 

ii. Host community meetings to 
get more buy in from the city 

iii. City Manager will present the 
numbers to council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

5. Gather a proposal for a new look and cost of 
renovating fire station at the current 
location.  

a. A rendering needs to be created to 
show the public 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

6. Review the Social Media policy (specifically 
# 3 & 4) as it relates to non-city employees 
and council members.  

a. It’s a developing area legally. We 
should review the policy because it’s 
from 2014 and make sure it’s in 
accordance with current situation. 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

7. Design the new website  
a. Have 2-3 citizens sit in to consult 

about the ease of receiving 
notifications. Get a mixture of people 
who are and aren’t familiar with 
computers  

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

8. Find more ways to get coverage in the news 
a. neighbors@theeagle.com - send 

pictures to get included 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

9. Develop relationships with Boards and 
Commissions: 

a. Have a mandatory annual meeting 
with members to talk about what a 
comp plan is, what the Council’s 
expectations are, and that they need 
to be able to make decisions as a 
board. They need to know about open 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

meetings act, public information act, 
Robert’s Rules of Order, ect.  

i. By being involved, we have a 
chance to educate them about 
how the city works  

ii. We don’t want to take away 
their ability to think, but we 
can give them parameters  

iii. We should create a statement 
to be read before each meeting 
that says “we are our own 
board, we work toward the 
goals of the city and will stand 
by the final decision”. It’s a 
reminder that we’re all here to 
do the best for the city. A 
mission statement to go at the 
top of the packet. 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) Update on the May 2, 2020 City Election;

Actualizacion de las elecciones municipales del 2 de mayo de
2020

(b) Results from Home for the Holidays;

(c) Texas Birthday Bash update;

(d) Results from Blue Santa;

(e) Results from No Razor November event;

(f) Utility Department update;

(g) Foster Street Drainage update;

(h) Board and Commission update; and

(i) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information
regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or
sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended
by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in
the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

Brad Stafford, City Manager



BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Election Notice

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578496938x_at.pdf




ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and
testimony regarding zoning changes initiated by the Planning
and Zoning Commission, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open Space District to M-1: light industrial district for
the properties legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 27,
Acres 3.03, and A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, changing
the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to
R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger,
residential district for the properties legally described as, S8019
- River Haven, block 1, Lot 3-1, Acres 1.26, S8019 - River Haven,
block 1, lot 2-1, Acres 7.7, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 1-1,
Acres 14.619, and A0002 D Arnold, Tract 34-2, Acres 10.84,
changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space
District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential
district for the properties legally described as A0002. D Arnold,
Tract 18, Par 5, Acres 27.76 and S8212 - Savensky Subdivision,
Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in Navasota, Grimes County,
Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The purpose of rezoning A/O districts is to ensure alignment
with the Comprehensive Plan and streamline the development
process for future developers. The listed properties are within
the Airport Growth Center per the Comprehensive Plan. On
October 24, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Commission held a
workshop where they directed staff to move forward with the
rezoning public hearing process.

Public hearing opened at _______p.m.

Public hearing closed at ________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends holding a public hearing to receive public
comment and testimony regarding zoning changes initiated by
the Planning and Zoning Commission, changing the current
zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to M-1: light
industrial district for the properties legally described as A0046 J
Moore, Tract 27, Acres 3.03, and A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres
2.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open
Space District to R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre
lot or larger, residential district for the properties legally
described as, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, Lot 3-1, Acres 1.26,
S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 2-1, Acres 7.7, S8019 - River
Haven, block 1, lot 1-1, Acres 14.619, and A0002 D Arnold, Tract
34-2, Acres 10.84, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open Space District to R-3: high density, multi-
dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally
described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 18, Par 5, Acres 27.76 and
S8212 - Savensky Subdivision, Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Staff Report

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1576766283x_at.pdf


  
 

City of Navasota Planning and Zoning Commission 
Staff Report 

 

 
Date: November 21, 2019 
To:  Planning and Zoning Commission 
From:  Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director  
Agenda Item: A/O Agricultural Open Space District Rezoning 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION: 
MAP # 1 
PID: R70228 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 3-1, ACRES 1.26, (INSIDE CITY LIMITS) 
OWNER: NAVASOTA RIVER HAVEN INC 
ADDRESS: LAKE VICTORIA DR, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ACRES: 1.26 
ZONING: A/O 
 
MAP # 2 
PID: R70227 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 2-1, ACRES 7.7, (INSIDE CITY LIMITS) 
OWNER: STERLING TRUST COMPANY 
ADDRESS: LAKE VICTORIA DR, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ACRES: 23.52 
ZONING: Split B-1 and A/O 
 
MAP # 3 
PID: R70226 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 1-1, ACRES 14.619, (INSIDE CITY LIMITS) 
OWNER: NAVASOTA RIVER HAVEN INC 
ADDRESS: LAKE VICTORIA DR, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ACRES: 14.62 
ZONING: A/O 
 
MAP # 4 
PID: R68519 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0002 D ARNOLD, TRACT 34-2, ACRES 10.84 
OWNER: NAVASOTA RIVER HAVEN INC 
ACRES: 10.84 
ZONING: A/O 
 
 
 



MAP # 5 
PID: R10283 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0002. D ARNOLD, TRACT 18, PAR 5, ACRES 27.76 
OWNER: SAVENSKY, STEVE & EDNA 
ADDRESS: 120 HILLEY-SAVENSKY LN, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ZONING: A/O 
 
MAP # 6 
PID: R70902 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: S8212 - SAVENSKY SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 1, Lot 1, ACRES 1 
OWNER: SAVENSKY, RODNEY S & MICHELLE M 
ADDRESS: 110 HILLEY-SAVENSKY LN, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ZONING: A/O 
 
MAP # 7 
PID: R13794 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 27, ACRES 3.03 
OWNER: JACKSON, CONRAD HILTON 
ACRES: 3.03 
ZONING: Split B-1 and A/O 
 
MAP # 8 
PID: R13776 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 10, ACRES 2.00 
OWNER: NOBLES, PEGGY SUE 
ADDRESS: 1702 S LA SALLE, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ACRES: 23.52 
ZONING: A/O 
 
REQUEST: 
Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and testimony regarding zoning changes initiated 
by the Planning and Zoning Commission, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space 
District to M-1: light industrial district for the properties legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 27, 
Acres 3.03, and A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: 
Agriculture/open Space District to R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger, residential 
district for the properties legally described as, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, Lot 3-1, Acres 1.26, S8019 - 
River Haven, block 1, lot 2-1, Acres 7.7, s8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 1-1, Acres 14.619, and A0002 D 
Arnold, Tract 34-2, Acres 10.84, chaning the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to 
R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0002. D 
Arnold, Tract 18, Par 5, Acres 27.76 and S8212 - Savensky Subdivision, Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in 
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The purpose of rezoning A/O districts is to ensure alignment with the Comprehensive Plan and 
streamline the development process for future developers. The listed properties are within the Airport 
Growth Center per the Comprehensive Plan. 
 



On October 24, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Commission held a workshop where they directed staff to 
move forward with the rezoning public hearing process to make the following changes: 
  
Rezone properties # 1-4 from Agriculture/Open Space District to R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 
2-acre lot or larger, residential district for the development of single dwelling units within the River 
Haven Subdivision. R-1C requirements complement the larger lot sizes within the River Haven 
Subdivision.  
 
Rezone property # 5-6 from Agriculture/Open Space District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, 
residential district to encourage infill multifamily development. 
 
And lastly rezone properties # 7-8 from Agriculture/Open Space District to M-1: Light Industrial District. 
The location of the properties between two rail lines and direct access to the truck route makes them 
ideal for any light industrial use in the future. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends conducting a pubic hearing and approving the proposed zoning changes. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN RELATION: 
“Areas within the City’s boundaries and ETJ that are positioned for development.” (Comp Plan pg.63) 
Airport Growth Center

 

 
 

 



 
 

AERIAL/ZONING MAP VIEW: 
 

 



 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 912-20, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open Space District to M-1: light industrial district for
the properties legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 27,
Acres 3.03, and A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, changing
the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to
R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger,
residential district for the properties legally described as, S8019
- River Haven, block 1, Lot 3-1, Acres 1.26, S8019 - River Haven,
block 1, lot 2-1, Acres 7.7, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 1-1,
Acres 14.619, and A0002 D Arnold, Tract 34-2, Acres 10.84,
changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space
District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential
district for the properties legally described as A0002. D Arnold,
Tract 18, Par 5, Acres 27.76 and S8212 - Savensky Subdivision,
Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in Navasota, Grimes County,
Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The purpose of rezoning A/O districts is to ensure alignment
with the Comprehensive Plan and streamline the development
process for future developers. The listed properties are within
the Airport Growth Center per the Comprehensive Plan. On
October 24, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Commission held a
workshop where they directed staff to move forward with the
rezoning public hearing process.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



Staff recommends approving the first reading of Ordinance No.
912-20, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open
Space District to M-1: light industrial district for the properties
legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 27, Acres 3.03, and
A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, changing the current zoning
from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to R-1C: low density,
single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger, residential district for
the properties legally described as, S8019 - River Haven, block
1, Lot 3-1, Acres 1.26, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 2-1,
Acres 7.7, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 1-1, Acres 14.619,
and A0002 D Arnold, Tract 34-2, Acres 10.84, changing the
current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to R-3:
high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the
properties legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 18, Par 5,
Acres 27.76 and S8212 - Savensky Subdivision, Block 1, Lot 1,
Acres 1, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 912-20

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578344678x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 912-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO REZONE THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY FROM A/O: 
AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE DISTRICT TO M-1: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 27, ACRES 3.03, A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 
10, ACRES 2.00, AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO REZONE THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY FROM A/O: 
AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE DISTRICT TO R-1C: LOW DENSITY, SINGLE 
DWELLING UNIT, 2 ACRE LOT OR LARGER, RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: RIVER 
HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 3-1, ACRES 1.26, S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 
2-1, ACRES 7.7, S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 1-1, ACRES 14.619, 
A0002 D ARNOLD, TRACT 34-2, ACRES 10.84, AMENDING THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO REZONE THE 
FOLLOWING PROPERTIES FROM A/O: AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 
TO R-3: HIGH DENSITY, MULTI-DWELLING UNIT, RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: 

A0002. D ARNOLD, TRACT 18, PAR 5, ACRES 27.76, S8212 - SAVENSKY 
SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 1, Lot 1, ACRES 1; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, on the 24TH day of October 2019, a workshop was held by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission to discuss the rezoning of certain properties currently 
zoned as A/O: Agricultural/Open Space Districts to be in accordance with the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Navasota; and 
 

WHEREAS, it was determined that a 3.03 acre tract legally described as A0046 J 
MOORE, TRACT 27, a 2.0 acre tract legally described as A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 10, 
should be rezoned from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to M-1: light industrial 
district; and 

 
WHEREAS, it was determined that a 1.26 acre tract legally described as S8019 - 

RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 3-1, a 7.7 acre tract legally described as S8019 - RIVER 
HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 2-1, a 14.619 acre tract legally described as S8019 - RIVER 
HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 1-1, ACRES 14.619, a 10.84 acre tract legally described as A0002 
D ARNOLD, TRACT 34-2, should be rezoned from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 
to R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger, residential district; and 

 
WHEREAS, it was determined that a 27.76 acre tract legally described as 

A0002. D ARNOLD, TRACT 18, PAR 5, a 1 acre tract legally described as S8212 - 
SAVENSKY SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 1, Lot 1, should be rezoned from A/O: 
Agriculture/Open Space District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential 
district; and 

 



WHEREAS, the rezoning of said properties is in harmony with the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Navasota; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 12th of December 2019, a public hearing was held before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Navasota, a quorum being present on 
the occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda for said Commission 
meeting, an opportunity to present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning 
was held; and 
 

WHEREAS, the properties are shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Navasota 
City Council, that the properties legally described as A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 27, ACRES 
3.03, A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 10, ACRES 2.00 be rezoned as M-1: Light Industrial 
District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Navasota 

City Council, that the properties legally described as S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, 
Lot 3-1, ACRES 1.26, S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 2-1, ACRES 7.7, S8019 - 
RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 1-1, ACRES 14.619, A0002 D ARNOLD, TRACT 34-2, 
ACRES 10.84, be rezoned as R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger, 
residential district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Navasota 

City Council, that the properties legally described as A0002. D ARNOLD, TRACT 18, PAR 
5, ACRES 27.76 and S8212 - SAVENSKY SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 1, Lot 1, ACRES 1, be 
rezoned as R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 13th day of January 2020, after notice as required by law, a 
public hearing was held before the Navasota City Council, a quorum being present on 
the occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda, an opportunity to 
present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning was held; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the following properties currently zoned as A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 
to M-1: Light Industrial District: a 3.03 acre tract legally described as A0046 J MOORE, 
TRACT 27, a 2.0 acre tract legally described as A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 10. 
 
SECTION 2. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the following properties currently zoned as A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 



to R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger, residential district: a 1.26 
acre tract legally described as S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 3-1, a 7.7 acre tract 
legally described as S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 2-1, a 14.619 acre tract 
legally described as S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 1-1, ACRES 14.619, a 10.84 
acre tract legally described as A0002 D ARNOLD, TRACT 34-2. 
 
SECTION 3. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the following properties currently zoned as A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 
to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district: a 27.76 acre tract legally 
described as A0002. D ARNOLD, TRACT 18, PAR 5, a 1 acre tract legally described as 
S8212 - SAVENSKY SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 1, Lot 1. 
 
SECTION 4. That if any section, subsection, word, sentence or phrase of this 
Ordinance is held invalid, it shall not affect the remaining parts of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, 
approval, and adoption on second reading.  
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 13th DAY OF 
JANUARY 2020. 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                          BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS 27TH DAY OF 
JANUARY 2020. 
 
 
                                                                       ______________________ 
                                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



Exhibit “A” 
 

 
 

R13794: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 27, ACRES 3.03 
R13776: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 10, ACRES 2.00 

 



 
 

R70228: S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 3-1, ACRES 1.26 
R70227: S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 2-1, ACRES 7.7 

R70226: S8019 - RIVER HAVEN, BLOCK 1, Lot 1-1, ACRES 14.619 
R68519: A0002 D ARNOLD, TRACT 34-2, ACRES 10.84 



 
 

R70902: S8212 - SAVENSKY SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 1, Lot 1, ACRES 1 
R10283: A0002. D ARNOLD, TRACT 18, PAR 5, ACRES 27.76 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 667-
20, in support of proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing
Apartments and waiver of permit fees.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The Megan Group, LLC, owners of Navasota Landing Apartments
plans to submit an application to the Texas Department of
Housing and Community Affairs for 2020 Housing Tax Credits to
rehabilitate the apartment complex.  Arx Advantage is assisting
The Megan Group, LLC with the project and asks the City to
support the project and waive permit fees in the amount of
$250.  The City Council recently approved this Resolution but it
had the incorrect name of the apartment complex in it. 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 667-20, in support
of proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and
waiver of permit fees in the amount of $250.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 667-20

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578320592x_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 667-20 
 

 
WHEREAS, The Megan Group, LLC has proposed the rehabilitation of affordable rental housing 
known as the Navasota Landing Apartments located at 520 Laredo Street in the City of Navasota, 
Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Megan Group, LLC has communicated that it intends to submit an application to the 
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs for 2020 Housing Tax Credits for the Navasota 
Landing Apartments development; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Megan Group, LLC has requested a waiver of development/permit fees in the amount 
of $250.00 for the Navasota Landing Apartments development as a commitment of development 
funding from the City of Navasota, Texas; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas has the authority to defer development fees on the property 
located at 520 Laredo Street; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT, 
 
The governing body of the City of Navasota, Texas, hereby adopts this resolution as evidence to its 
commitment of funds in the amount of $250.00 to be provided to the development in the form of a 
waiver of development/permit fees; and 
 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that as provided for in §11.3(c) of the Qualified Allocation Plan, it is 
expressly acknowledged and confirmed that the City of Navasota has more than twice the state 
average of units per capita supported by Housing Tax Credits or Private Activity Bonds; and 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Navasota, acting through its governing body, hereby confirms 
that it supports the proposed Navasota Landing Apartments proposed to be located at 520 Laredo 
Street and that this formal action has been taken to put on record the opinion expressed by the City of 
Navasota and confirms that its governing body has voted specifically to approve the rehabilitation of 
the Navasota Landing Apartments and to authorize an allocation of Housing Tax Credits for the 
Development pursuant to Texas Government Code §2306.6703(a)(4); and 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the rehabilitation of the Navasota Landing Apartments will contribute 
more than any other tax credit assisted housing development to the concerted revitalization efforts of 
the City; and  
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that for and on behalf of the Governing Body, Bert Miller, Mayor are 
hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to certify these resolutions to the Texas Department of 
Housing and Community Affairs. 
 
 
 
This resolution shall take effect immediately and upon passage. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 13TH day of JANUARY, 2020 at a regular meeting of the 
city council of the City of Navasota. 



 
 
 
 
                                                          ________________________ 
                                                                      BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Ordinance No. 913-
20, Uniform Right-of-Way management ordinance.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City receives requests for installation of utilities in city
owned Rights-of-way often, and there is no current ordinance for
permitting this work.  Legal counsel and staff propose the
ordinance to improve management of the right-of-way.  The
ordinance requires an installer to acquire a permit, and provide
"as built" maps for the City. The information acquired will be
helpful when other improvements or repairs are needed in the
rights-of-way.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
913-20, Uniform Right-of-Way management plan.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 913-20

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578332927x_at.pdf


  
 City of Navasota                   Page 1  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

ORDINANCE NO. 913-20 

  

UNIFORM RIGHT-OF-WAY MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE  

  

  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, GOVERNING 

THE UNIFORM USE, OCCUPANCY AND CONSTRUCTION IN THE  

CITY’S PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY; PROVIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING:  

DEFINITIONS; FRANCHISE REQUIRED; REGISTRATION OF 

RIGHTSOF-WAY OCCUPANTS; CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS; 

CONDITIONS OF GRANT; ENFORCEMENT, INCLUDING FINE NOT 

TO EXCEED $500.00 OR CIVIL PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED $500.00; 

REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROPER 

NOTICE AND MEETING  

  

WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Texas have consistently and expressly preserved the historic 

authority of Texas municipalities to manage the public rights-of-way and regulate the use, occupancy and 

construction in those public rights-of-way; and  

  

WHEREAS, in Chapter 283 of the Texas Local Government Code, the State of Texas has granted 

telecommunications companies holding a certificate from the Public Utilities Commission of Texas the 

authority to place their poles, conduit, cable, switches and related appurtenances and facilities within the City’s 

public rights-of-way; and  

  

WHEREAS, the City Council may at its discretion grant authority in the form of franchise ordinances to 

persons other than telecommunications companies seeking to occupy the City’s public rights-of-way, such as 

but not limited to, those transmitting or distributing gas, water, wastewater, electricity, or cable services; and  

  

WHEREAS, the City Council may require persons to register and obtain construction permits in order 

to place facilities within the public rights-of-way and repair or maintain those facilities; and  

  

WHEREAS, the City Council may, in the course of protecting the public health, safety and welfare, 

exercise its police powers to regulate the use of the public rights-of-way in a reasonable, competitively neutral 

and nondiscriminatory manner; and  

  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas and its inherent police powers, the City Council 

may establish reasonable regulations governing construction activities within and upon the public rights-of-way 

so to preserve those valuable public resources, maintain the physical integrity of the streets, conserve the limited 

physical capacity of the public rights-of-way, prevent pedestrian and vehicular traffic hazards, minimize 



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 2  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

congestion, avoid damage to private property, limit visual blight and noise, and protect the public health, safety 

and welfare; and   

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary for the good government, peace or order of the City to 

adopt an ordinance regulating the use of public rights-of-ways within the City;  

  

 WHEREAS, municipal police power-based regulations as applied to management of the public rights-ofway 

typically include provisions regarding restrictions on excavations, cutting curbs and streets, detouring traffic, 

erecting barricades, restoring public rights-of-way, trimming trees, and relocating facilities; and   

  

 WHEREAS, upon issuance of public notice and conducting a public meeting, the City Council find the 

enactment of the following regulations to be reasonably necessary to protect the public health, safety and 

welfare.  

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, THAT:  

  

SECTION I  

ENACTING PROVISIONS  

  

A. COMMON NAME  

  

This Ordinance shall commonly be referred to as the “Uniform Right-of-Way Management Ordinance.”  

  

B. FINDINGS OF FACT  

  

All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and factual findings of the City of 

Navasota and are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.  

     

 C.  Purpose  

  

The purpose of this Ordinance is to:  

  

1. Assist in the management of public rights-of-way in a non-discriminatory and competitively 

neutral manner;  

  

2. Govern the use and occupancy of the rights-of-way by Certificated Telecommunications 

Providers,  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 3  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

cable service providers, electric distribution systems, gas distribution systems, and all other 

persons expressly authorized by the City or State law to construct and maintain facilities in the 

public rights-of-way.  

  

3. Assure that the City can continue to fairly and responsibly protect the public health, safety and 

welfare and effectively manage its rights-of-way as a vital public resource.  

  

4. Minimize the disruption, damage, or alteration of existing trees, vegetation, and ground cover in 

the City’s public rights-of-way.  

  

5. Minimize the congestion, inconvenience, visual impact, costs, and other adverse effects of 

construction in and use of the City’s public rights-of-way.  

  

6. Conserve the limited capacity of the City’s public rights-of-way held in public trust by the City.  

  

7. Preserve the physical integrity of and control the orderly flow of vehicles and pedestrians on the 

City’s public rights-of-way.  

  

8. Assist the City in its efforts to identify the different entities using the City’s public rights-of-way.  

  

SECTION II  

DEFINITIONS  

  

Definitions  

  

Whenever used in this Ordinance, the following terms, as well as their singular, plural, and possessive forms, 

shall have the following definitions and meanings, unless the context of the sentence in which they are used 

indicates otherwise:  

  

1. “Cable Service” means Cable Service as defined in the Cable Communications Policy Act of 

1984, as amended, 47 U.S.C.A. §522 et seq.  

  

2. “Certificated Telecommunications Provider” or “CTP” means a person who has been issued a 

certificate of convenience and necessity, certificate of operating authority, or service provider 

certificate of operating authority by the Public Utility Commission to offer local exchange 

telephone service.  

  

3. “District” means any district or authority created by authority of either Texas Constitution, art. 

III, § 2(b)(1)-(2), or art. XVI, § 59.   

  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 4  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

4. “Facilities” means any and all of the duct spaces, manholes, lines, wires, fibers, poles, conduits, 

underground and overhead passageways, and other equipment, structures, plant and 

appurtenances, and all associated transmission media placed in, on, over or under the public 

rights-of-way, including wires, cables and pipelines.  

  

5. “Grantee” means a person that the City has expressly granted the authority to use, occupy and 

construct facilities within the City’s public rights-of-way pursuant to a duly enacted franchise 

ordinance.  The term also includes certificated telecommunications providers, districts, and water 

supply corporations.  

  

6. “Person” means a natural person (an individual), corporation, company, association, partnership, 

firm, limited liability company, joint venture, joint stock company or association, cooperative, 

utility, public utility, retail public utility, district, water supply corporation, political subdivision 

and any other legal entity.  

  

7. “Plans of Record” means “as built” construction plans, maps, and drawings used in the ordinary 

course of business and as reasonably required by the City of facilities in the public rights-of-

ways.  

  

8. “Public Rights-of-Way” or “Rights-of-Way” means the area on, below, above or adjacent to a 

public roadway, highway, street, public sidewalk, alley, waterway, or utility easement, in which 

the City has an interest.   The term does not include the airwaves above a right-of-way with 

regard to wireless telecommunications.  

  

9. “Public Utility” means a “public utility” as that term is used in the Public Utility Regulatory Act 

of 1995, Texas Utilities Code, § 11.004, including municipally owned and/or operated utilities, 

and also means a “gas utility” as that term is defined in the Gas Utility Regulatory Act, Texas 

Utilities Code, §101.004, including municipally owned and/or operated utilities.  

  

10. “Telecommunications Service” means the rent, sale or lease, of plant, equipment, facilities, or 

other property for the transmission of voice, data, image, graphics and other communications 

between or among points by wire, fiber optics, or other similar facilities, but does not include the 

provision to the public of any "wireless service," as defined by law, and does not include long-

distance transmissions (inter-LATA and intra-LATA toll transmissions).  

  

11. “Telecommunications Utility” means "Telecommunications Utility" as used in the Public Utility 

Regulatory Act of 1995, Texas Utilities Code, Section 51.002(11).  

  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 5  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

12. “Use and Occupancy” means installation, construction, re-construction, maintenance, or repair, 

of any facilities in, over, under, along, through or across the Public rights-of-way for any purpose 

whatsoever.  

  

13. “City” means The City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, a duly incorporated municipality.  

  

14. “City Council” means the City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas.  

  

15. “Water Supply Corporation” means a nonprofit water supply or sewer service corporation 

created or operating under Texas Water Code Chapter 67.  

  

 C.  Non-discrimination and Competitive Neutrality    

  

City hereby recognizes that it has the legal duty to ensure that it will not create physical or economic 

barriers to any Grantee attempting to enter the market, and to ensure that all City regulations are 

imposed in a competitively neutral manner.    

  

 D.  Governing Law   

  

This Ordinance shall be construed in accordance with the other City ordinances in effect on the date of 

passage of this Ordinance and as may be amended from time to time to the extent that such Ordinance is 

not in conflict with or in violation of the Constitution and laws of the United States or the State of Texas.    

  

SECTION III  

FRANCHISE REQUIRED  

  

 A.  General  

  

No person shall use, occupy or construct Facilities in, upon, over or under the City’s public rights-of-

way, without first having applied for and received a franchise or other authorization from the City unless 

otherwise provided by law.  

  

 B.  Certificated Telecommunications Providers  

  

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 283, a CTP is not required to obtain a franchise.  A 

CTP is subject to all other provisions of this Ordinance.  

  

 

 



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 6  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

SECTION IV  

REGISTRATION OF RIGHTS-OF-WAY OCCUPANTS  

  

 A.  Registration Required  

  

1. No person shall use, maintain, operate, occupy or construct Facilities in, upon, over, or under the 

City’s public rights-of-way without having registered with the City in accordance with the 

following provisions.  In order to protect the public health, safety and welfare, all persons using 

or occupying the rights-of-way will register with the City.  Registration will be issued in the 

name of the person who will own the facilities.  Registration must be renewed every five (5) 

years. If a registration is not renewed, subject to sixty (60) day notification to the owner, the 

facilities of the user will be deemed to have been abandoned.    

  

2. All persons using or occupying the City public rights-of-way must register within ninety (90) 

days after the effective date of this Ordinance.  

  

3. Persons possessing a current franchise issued by the City do not need to register under this 

section.  

  

 B.  Required Information  

  

Registration shall be on a form prescribed by the City and shall include:  

  

1. The name of the user of the rights-of-way;  

  

2. The name, address and telephone number of the people who will be contact person(s) for the 

user;  

  

3. The name, address and telephone number of any and all contractors or subcontractors who will 

be working in the rights-of-way on behalf of the user;  

  

4. The name(s) and telephone number of an emergency contact who shall be available twenty-four 

(24) hours a day;  

  

5. Proof of insurance, as specified in Section VI, subsection B.  

  

6. When any information provided in the registration changes, the user shall inform the City of the 

change no more than thirty (30) days after the date the change is made.  

  

 



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 7  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

SECTION V.  

CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS  

  

 A.  Rights-of-Way Construction Permits  

  

1. No person shall excavate, contract, install, repair or maintain facilities in, upon, over or under the 

City’s public rights-of-way or affect traffic flow without first having applied for and received a 

nonexclusive rights-of-way construction permit from the City in accordance with the following 

provisions.  Persons, including Grantees, are required to obtain a rights-of-way construction 

permit prior to conducting land-disturbing activities for any reason in the public rights-of-way.    

  

2. A permit shall not be required for the installation of facilities necessary to initiate service to a  

customer’s property, or repair or maintenance of existing facilities unless such repair or 

maintenance requires the breaking of pavement, the closure of a nonresidential traffic lane, 

excavation or boring.  

  

3. No permit shall be issued unless the Grantee has a valid franchise, as provided by Section III, 

above, and the Grantee is in full compliance with all terms of the franchise, including payment of 

any franchise fees.  

  

4. No permit shall be issued unless the Grantee has registered with the City, as provided by Section 

IV, above.  

  

5. The rights-of-way construction permits shall be available at a cost of twenty-five dollars ($25.00)  

and shall not be unreasonably delayed or withheld by the City.  

   

6. On a form prescribed by the City, the Grantee shall provide the following information in order to 

apply for a rights-of-way construction permit.  

  

(a) The name of the Grantee;  

  

(b) The name, address and telephone number of the contact person(s) for the Grantee;  

  

(c) The name, address and telephone number of any and all contractors or subcontractors 

performing the work;  

  

(d) A detailed description of the project, duration of the project, location of the desired work, 

erosion control plan, and proposal for lane closures, if any; and  

  

(e) Proof of insurance and a surety bond, as specified in Section VI, subsections B & C.  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 8  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

  

7. A copy of the permit and engineering plans shall be maintained at the construction site and made 

available for inspection by the City at all times when construction or installation work is 

occurring.  

  

8. If any of the provisions of this Ordinance are not followed, a permit may be revoked by the City 

Manager or the City Manager’s designee.  If a person has not followed the terms and conditions 

of this Ordinance and work done pursuant to a prior permit, new permits may be denied or 

additional terms required.  

  

9. Appeal from denial or revocation of permit or from the decision of the City Manager or the City 

Manager’s designee shall be to the City Council.  Appeal shall be filed with the City Secretary 

within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of the decision being appealed.  

  

10. The City shall assign the location in, across, along, over, or under the public right-of-way among 

competing users with due consideration to each user type and the public health, safety and 

welfare.  Based on these considerations, the City may prohibit a person from using the public 

right-of-way, unless expressly prohibited to do so by state or federal law.  A construction permit 

is not transferable or assignable to any person Other than the Grantee without the prior written 

approval of the City.  

  

 B.  Construction and Maintenance of Facilities  

  

1. Facilities installed by Grantee in City shall be placed underground and shall be under 

construction  

within sixty (60) days of a Developer’s request and assurance that the site is ready for utility 

installation.  Grantee shall maintain good faith efforts toward completion of the installation of 

facilities.  Surface equipment may be installed at any time provided no excessive damage to 

infrastructure occurs.   

  

2. Final or record plats of approved subdivisions may be obtained from the County. When any final 

or record plat has been signed by the property owner and approved by the City, a Grantee may 

begin construction and installation of facilities in the utility easements as depicted in the final or 

record plat.   

  

3. Pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas and this Ordinance, Grantee has the non-exclusive 

right and privilege to use and occupy the public rights-of-way in City for the purpose of 

maintaining and operating its facilities subject to the terms, conditions, and stipulations set forth 

in this Ordinance, the Constitution and laws of the United States and the State of Texas and the 

City's Ordinances to the extent such Ordinances are not in conflict herewith.  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 9  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

  

4. Grantee's facilities and transmission media used in or incident to the provision of services and to 

the maintenance of a business by Grantee in City shall remain as now constructed, subject to 

such changes under the conditions prescribed in this Ordinance as may be considered necessary 

to protect the public health and safety, and such changes and extensions as may be considered 

necessary by Grantee in the pursuit of its business.  Grantee shall at all times during the term of 

this Ordinance be subject to all lawful exercise of the police power by City in the operation and 

maintenance of the public rights-of-way.  The terms of this Ordinance shall apply throughout 

City and shall apply to all of Grantee's facilities.  

  

5. The permitted working hours in the rights-of-way are 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through 

Friday.  Work that needs to be performed after 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday must be 

approved by the City in advance.  Any work performed on Saturday must be approved twenty-

four (24) hours in advance by the City.  Directional boring is permitted only Monday through 

Friday 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., unless approved in advance.  No work will be done, except for 

emergencies, on Sundays or legal holidays, unless approved in advance.  

   

 C.  Location of Facilities  

  

All facilities shall be constructed, installed and located in accordance with the following terms and 

conditions:  

  

1. All cables, wires, telephone lines, pipelines and other facilities installed are required to be placed 

underground.  Such facilities shall be installed within its existing underground duct or conduit or 

on existing poles whenever excess capacity exists within such facility.   

  

2. All facilities in a public right-of-way shall be constructed, installed, placed, and maintained with 

the utmost diligence so that such facilities will not:  

  

(a) endanger the lives of any person;  

(b) unnecessarily inconvenience the public or residents of the City;  

(c) unreasonably interfere with any City improvements;  

(d) obstruct the free use of public easements, public grounds, or public right-of-ways;  

(e) interfere with any existing facilities, traffic control signals, street lights, fire lines, or 

communication lines; or  

(f) obstruct or hinder in any manner the various utilities serving City residents.  

  

3. In determining whether any requirement under this Section is unreasonable or unfeasible, the 

City Manager or the City Manager’s designee shall consider, among other things, whether the 

requirement would subject Grantee to an unreasonably increased risk of service interruption, to 



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 10  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

an unreasonably increased liability for accidents, to an unreasonable delay in construction or in 

the availability of its services, or to any other unreasonable technical or economic burden.  

  

 D.  Damage to Property  

  

Grantee, or any person acting on Grantee's behalf, shall not take any action or permit any action to be 

done which may impair or damage any City property or other property located in, on or adjacent to the 

public rights-of-way.  Nothing in this Ordinance relieves a Grantee, municipality, or any other person or 

entity from its obligations to obtain locates of underground facilities before excavation as required by 

the Underground Facility Damage Prevention and Safety Act, Texas Utilities Code, Section 251.001, et 

seq.  

  

 E.  Notice of Repair and Emergency Work  

  

Grantee, or any person acting on Grantee's behalf, shall not commence any work in or about City 

property or public rights-of-way without providing seven (7) days advance notice to City.  If an 

emergency exists which makes advance notification impossible, the Grantee may begin that response or 

repair work, or take any action required under the circumstances, provided that notice to the City is 

given as promptly as possible after beginning the work, and Grantee acquires any approval required by 

City ordinances applicable to emergency response work.  

  

 F.  Maintenance of Facilities  

  

Grantee shall maintain its facilities in a good and safe condition and in a manner that complies with all 

applicable law.  

  

 G.  Relocation or Removal of Facilities  

  

1. Grantee may not locate or maintain its Facilities so as to unreasonably interfere with the use of 

City property or public rights-of-way by City or by other persons authorized to use or be present 

in or upon City property or public rights-of-way.  In the event of unreasonable interference to 

City property or public rights-of-way, such Facilities shall be moved by Grantee, temporarily or 

permanently, as determined by the City Manager or the City Manager’s designee upon 

reasonable notice.  If the temporary removal of Grantee's aerial facilities is necessary to permit 

the moving of houses or other bulky structures, Grantee shall be required to temporarily remove 

the same upon not less than twenty (20) days advance notice by a party permitted to move a 

building, house or other bulky structure. Upon a showing that twenty (20) days does not afford a 

Grantee adequate time to  

arrange removal of facilities, the parties shall agree upon a schedule which shall not 

unreasonably delay the moving of houses or other bulky structures.  The expenses of such 



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 11  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

temporary relocation or removal of aerial facilities shall be paid in advance by the party or 

parties requesting and benefitting from such temporary relocation or removal.  

  

2. Within thirty (30) days following written notice from City, or a mutually agreed upon time 

frame, Grantee shall, without claim for reimbursement or damages against City, temporarily or 

permanently (as determined by the City) remove, relocate, change or alter the position of any 

facilities on City property or within the public rights-of-way whenever City officials determine 

that such removal, relocation, change or alteration is reasonably required for the widening or 

straightening of streets.    

  

3. In any instance in which operation of Subsection 2 of this Section is deemed by Grantee to 

impose a significant financial hardship, Grantee shall have the right to present alternative 

proposals to City, and City shall give due consideration to any such alternative proposals.  

  

4. If after proper notice, Grantee fails or refuses to remove or abate the facilities in question, City 

retains the rights and privilege to remove or abate any such utility facilities, at the sole cost and 

expense of Grantee.  In performing or permitting such work to be done, City shall not be liable to 

any carrier or any Grantee for any damages to any utility facilities unless directly and 

proximately caused by the willful, intentional or malicious act by City, and shall not be liable in 

any event for any consequential damages relating to service interruptions.  

  

 H.  Emergency Removal or Relocation of Facilities  

  

City retains the right and privilege to cut or move any facilities located on City property or within the 

public rights-of-way that the City may determine to be necessary, appropriate or useful in response to 

any public health or safety emergency.  City shall cooperate to the extent possible with Grantee in such 

instances to assure continuity of service, and to afford Grantee the opportunity to make such relocation 

and/or removal itself where deemed reasonable, at City's sole discretion.  City shall use all reasonable 

means to minimize the disruption of service.  

  

 I.  Restoration of Public Rights-of-Way and City Property  

  

1. When Grantee, or any person acting on its behalf, does any work in or affecting any public rights-of-way 

or City property, it shall at its own expense, promptly remove any obstructions and restore such public 

rights-of-way or City property to as good a condition as existed before the work was undertaken, 

including the compaction of all trench fill material in accordance with applicable regional standards.  

Soil testing shall be undertaken at all street crossings and as requested by the City, and as is required of 

all other users of the public rights-of-way.  

  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 12  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

2. Grantee shall replace and properly repair the surface, base, irrigation system and landscape treatment of 

any public rights-of-way that may be excavated or damaged by reason of the erection, construction, 

maintenance, or repair of the Grantee’s facilities within ten (10) calendar days after completion of the 

work in accordance with existing standards of the City in effect at the time of the work.  

  

3. If weather or other conditions do not permit the complete restoration required by this Section, Grantee 

shall temporarily restore the affected rights-of-way or property.  Such temporary restoration shall be at 

Grantee's sole expense and Grantee shall promptly undertake and complete the required permanent 

restoration when the weather or other conditions no longer prevent such permanent restoration.  

  

4. Grantee shall contain all sediment within the work area using erosion control measures and 

erosionlimiting construction techniques.  Grantee shall submit a construction erosion control plan with 

all permit applications.  All construction materials shall be cleared from rights-of-way by the end of 

every business day.  A waiver may be granted for this requirement.  

  

5. Grantee or other person acting on its behalf shall use suitable barricades, flags, flagmen, lights, flares 

and other measures as required for the safety of all members of the general public and to prevent injury 

or damage to any person, vehicle or property by reason of such work in or affecting such rights-of-way 

or property.  

6. If the Grantee, or any person acting on Grantee’s behalf, fails to restore the public rights-of-way within 

ten (10) calendar days after completion of the work, or if the City Council determines that the situation 

poses an immediate danger to the public, then the City on its own initiative may undertake restoration 

activities and the City’s actual costs of restoration shall be charged to the Grantee.  In the event of 

restoration by the City, Grantee shall remain subject to the criminal fines and civil penalties provided by 

this Ordinance in addition to the obligation to reimburse the City the actual costs of restoration.  

7. If, within one (1) year from the completion of the restoration work, the City reasonably determines that 

additional restoration is needed to place the public right-of-way or other property in as good a condition 

as the public right-of-way or other property was in immediately prior to the person’s disturbance, 

damage or injury, then the person shall perform such additional restoration at the person’s sole cost and 

expense, and to the satisfaction of the City.  

  

 J.  Plans of Record  

  

1. Within sixty (60) days of completion of each new permitted section of Grantee’s facilities, the 

Grantee shall supply the City with a complete set of “as built” plans of record for the new 

permitted section in a format used in the ordinary course of business of the Grantee’s business, to 

the extent they are prepared in the ordinary course of business, but excluding customer specific, 

proprietary or confidential information and as reasonably prescribed by City, and as allowed by 



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 13  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

law.  The City may, at its discretion, accept any reasonable alternative to “as built” plans of 

record which provides adequate information as to the location of Facilities in the public rights-of-

way.  

  

2. Grantee shall maintain maps of all of Grantee's facilities located on City property or within the 

public rights-of-way and shall promptly locate its Facilities at City's request.  

 

  

 K.  Duty to Provide Information  

  

Within ten (10) days of a written request from City Manager or the City Manager’s representatives, 

Grantee shall furnish City with information directly related to the Grantee’s use, occupancy or 

construction within or upon a public rights-of-way and as otherwise required by state law to be furnished 

to the City.  

  

SECTION VI  

CONDITIONS OF GRANT  

  

 A.  Indemnity  

  

1. The Grantee shall, at its sole cost and expense, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its 

officers, Councils, commissions, agents and employees, against and from any and all claims, 

demands, causes of actions, suits, proceedings, damages, liabilities and judgments of every kind 

arising out of or due to the Grantee’s construction, maintenance, or operation of a system in the 

City, including but not limited to damages for injury or death or damages to property, real or 

personal, and against all liabilities to others and against all loss, cost and expense, resulting or 

arising out of any of the same.  

    

2. The indemnity provided by this Subsection does not apply to any liability resulting from the 

negligence of the municipality, its officers, employees, contractors, or subcontractors.  If a 

Grantee and the municipality are found jointly liable by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

liability shall be apportioned comparatively in accordance with the laws of this state without, 

however, waiving any governmental immunity available to the municipality under state or 

federal law and without waiving any defenses of the parties under state or federal law.  This 

Section is solely for the benefit of the municipality and Grantee and does not create or grant any 

rights, contractual or otherwise, to any other person or entity.   

  

3. Grantee or City shall promptly advise the other in writing of any known claim or demand against 

the Grantee or City related to or arising out of the Grantee’s activities in a public right-of-way.  

  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 14  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

 B.  Grantee Insurance  

  

1. Each Grantee shall secure and maintain the following liability insurance policies.  

   

a. General liability insurance with limits not less than:  

        

(1) One Million and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) primary; and  

  

(2) One Million and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) umbrella or other securities as 

acceptable to the City Manager or the City Manager’s designee.  

  

b. Worker's compensation for Grantee’s employees within statutory limits.  

  

c. The liability insurance policies required by this Section shall be maintained by Grantee 

throughout the term during which Grantee is otherwise operating within public rights-of-

way, or is engaged in the removal of its facilities.    

  

2. Such liability insurance shall be kept in full force and effect by the Grantee during the existence 

of this franchise and thereafter for a period of not less than twelve (12) months.  

  

3. An insurer has no right of recovery against the City, and no recourse against the City for a 

Grantee’s non-payment of premiums or assessments.  

  

4. Insurance policies and certificates must be issued from an insurance company licensed to do 

business in the State of Texas.  Insurance policies and certificates issued by insurance companies 

not licensed to do business in the State of Texas are not acceptable.  

  

5. Unless otherwise precluded by law, Grantee may satisfy one or more of the insurance 

requirements specified in this Section through self-insurance.  In no event shall a self-insurance 

proposal be approved absent City's satisfaction that Grantee is in a sound financial condition, 

which shall be evidenced by a letter of self-insurance to be provided to City.  

  

 C.  Bonds  

  

1. The City Manager or the City Manager’s designee may waive the requirement of a bond, if 

Grantee is able to demonstrate financial responsibility by having assets in excess of an amount 

determined appropriate by the City Manager.  In the event the City Manager determines a bond is 

required, due to insufficient assets or a demonstration that the Grantee is not adequately or 

promptly fulfilling its responsibilities in the public rights-of-way, it shall meet the requirements 

of this section.  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 15  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

  

2. To the extent not maintained by an affiliate, Grantee shall annually obtain, maintain and file with 

the City Secretary, a corporate surety bond with a surety company authorized to do business in 

the State of Texas, and found acceptable by City Attorney, in the amount of Seventy-Five 

Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($75,000.00), or of the estimated amount of the value of work 

anticipated to be done in that year, whichever is greater, to guarantee the restoration of the rights-

of-way in the event the Grantee leaves a job site in the rights-of-way unfinished, incomplete, 

unsafe or unreasonably delays the completion of the construction.  Grantee shall provide this 

corporate surety bond within thirty (30) days of the issuance of a permit under this Ordinance but 

prior to commencement of construction.  Should a Grantee without a bond in place leave a job 

site in the rights-of-way unfinished, incomplete, unsafe or unreasonably delays the completion of 

construction, Grantee will pay the actual cost of restoring the rights-of-way, plus an 

administrative fee to reimburse the City’s cost of overseeing any such restoration.  

  

3. The rights reserved to City with respect to the Bond are in addition to all other rights of City, 

whether reserved by this Ordinance or authorized by law; and no action, proceeding or exercise 

of a right with respect to such bond shall affect any other right City may have.  

  

4. The bond shall contain the following endorsement:  

  

"It is hereby understood and agreed that this bond may not be canceled by 

the surety nor any intention not to renew be exercised by the surety until 

sixty (60) days after the receipt by City of Navasota, by registered mail, of 

written notice of such intent."  

  

5. Pursuant to Texas Water Code § 49.220, this subsection does not apply to districts and water 

supply corporations.  

  

 D.  Assignments of Transfers of Business  

  

The City requires Grantee to maintain a current point of contact information and provide notice of a 

transfer or assignment of business ownership or control.  

  

 E.  Notice  

  

1. All notices to City shall be in writing via certified mail, return receipt requested, to:  

Right-of Way Manager  

City of Navasota  

P.O. Box 910  

Navasota, Texas 77868  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 16  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

  

2. All notices to Grantee shall be in writing via certified mail, return receipt requested, to the 

contact person and address provided by Grantee to the City upon execution of this Ordinance.  

Notice shall be deemed effective when mailed to the most recent address provided by Grantee to 

City.  

  

3. Any change in the address, telephone number or fax number of Grantee or City shall be furnished 

to the other within a reasonable time.  

  

SECTION VII  

ADMINISTRATION OF ORDINANCE  

  

A. The City may, at reasonable times but not more than once annually unless there is good cause, make 

inquiries pertaining to compliance with this Ordinance and Grantee shall respond to such inquiries on a 

timely basis.  

  

B. City may establish, after reasonable notice, such rules and regulations as may be appropriate for the 

administration of this Ordinance in the construction of Grantee’s facilities on City property to the extent 

permitted by law.  

  

C. The City shall have the right to lay, and permit to be laid, cable, electric, gas, water, wastewater, and 

other pipelines, cables, conduits or facilities and to do and permit to be done, underground and overhead 

installation in, across, along, over or under any street, alley, highway, public right-of-way or public 

property occupied by the Grantee and to change any curb or sidewalk or grade of any street.  

  

   

SECTION VIII VARIANCES  

  

The City Council is authorized in specific cases to issue a variance from the strict and literal terms of this 

Ordinance if the Council expressly finds as follows:  

  

(1) the variance is not contrary to the public interest;   

  

(2) due to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the Ordinance would result in unnecessary 

hardship; and   

  

(3) the spirit of the Ordinance will be observed and substantial justice will be done.  

  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 17  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

SECTION IX  

ENFORCEMENT   

 

                

A.  Civil and Criminal Penalties  

  

The City shall have the power to administer and enforce the provisions of this Ordinance as may be 

required by governing law.  Any person violating any provision of this Ordinance is subject to suit for 

injunctive relief as well as prosecution for criminal violations.  Any violation of this Ordinance is hereby 

declared to be a nuisance.    

  

 B.  Criminal Prosecution  

  

Any person violating any provision of this Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be fined a sum not 

exceeding $500.00.  Each day that a provision of this Ordinance is violated shall constitute a separate 

offense.  An offense under this Ordinance is a misdemeanor.  

  

 C.  Civil Remedies  

  

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as a waiver of the City’s right to bring a civil action to 

enforce the provisions of this Ordinance and to seek remedies as allowed by law, including, but not 

limited to the following:   

  

1. injunctive relief to prevent specific conduct that violates the Ordinance or to require specific 

conduct that is necessary for compliance with the Ordinance; and  

   

2. a civil penalty up to $500.00 a day when it is shown that the defendant was actually notified of 

the  

provisions of the Ordinance and after receiving notice committed acts in violation of the 

Ordinance or failed to take action necessary for compliance with the Ordinance; and  

  

3. other available relief.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 18  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

SECTION X  

REPEALER  

  

 A.  General  

  

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in force when the provisions of this Ordinance become effective 

which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and provisions contained in this Ordinance are 

hereby repealed only to the extent of any such conflict.  

  

 B.  Franchises  

  

Should all or part of this Ordinance be inconsistent or conflict with a specific franchise ordinance 

adopted by the City, the two shall be read together to the extent possible, otherwise, specific provisions 

contained within the franchise ordinance shall govern as to that particular Grantee.  

  

 C.  Amendments  

  

Grantees shall, at all times, be subject to the lawful exercise of the City’s police power and regulatory 

authority and such reasonable and authorized regulations as the City shall hereafter by resolution or 

Ordinance provide.  

  

 D.  Newly Annexed Areas  

  

This Ordinance shall apply in newly annexed areas upon the date of annexation.  

  

SECTION XI  

SEVERABILITY  

  

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 

sections of this Ordinance be severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance is declared unconstitutional or invalid by the judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 

sections of this Ordinance, and the remainder of this Ordinance shall be enforced as written.  

  

SECTION XII  

EFFECTIVE DATE  

  

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after the date of passage and upon publication as 

required by law.  



  
 City of Navasota                   Page 19  

Right-of-Way Management Ordinance  

  

  

  

  

  

SECTION XIII  

PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING  

  

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to 

the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as 

required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.   

  

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 9th day of December, 2019, by the City Council of the City of Navasota, 

Texas.  

  

               CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS  

  

  

             BY:  ________________________________  

               Hon. Bert Miller, Mayor  

ATTEST:  

  

_________________________________  

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary  

  

  

 

  



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on appointments to
boards and commissions.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Members were appointed to boards and commissions during the
October 9th City Council meeting. Todd Matthews was
inadvertently not included in the list of applicants but wishes to
continue his service as a member on the Airport Advisory
Committee. 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends appointing Todd Matthews to the Airport
Advisory Committee.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Todd Matthews Application

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578412179x_at.pdf




ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Review the City of Navasota Quarterly Investment Report
for quarter ending 12-31-19.

 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Chapter 2256 of the Government Code, commonly known as the
“Public Funds Investment Act”, requires a city to provide the
governing body with an investment report for reveiw on a
quarterly basis. 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends reviewing the City of Navasota Quarterly
Investment Report.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 4th quarter 2019 investment report

Lance Hall , Finance Director

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578329071x_at.pdf




ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon
with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or a City
Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from
the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the
City Council as part of the regular agenda.

Consent Items Are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the
month of December, 2019;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the
month of December, 2019;

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda items which
include the minutes and the expenditures for the month of
December 2019.

 
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Minutes 12-02-2019 - Special
2. Minutes - 12-09-2019
3. Expenditures for December 2019

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578336866x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578336887x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578337116x_at.pdf


MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 2, 2019 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 5:30 p.m., Navasota, 

Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Geoff Horn, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Jonathan Soresbee, Community 

Development Specialist; Jennifer Reyna, Administrative Assistant and Cary Bovey, Legal 

Counsel. 

 

BOARD AND COMMISSION MEMBERS:   

Planning and Zoning Commission:  Patty Tokoly, Carolyn Katkoski, Todd Wisner, 

James Harris, Randy Peters and Dia Copeland 

Navasota Housing Authority:  Louis Morgan 

Keep Navasota Beautiful:  Brenda Mays, Brittany Bay, Phyllis Robinson, Liz Corpus 

and  

Navasota Economic Development Corporation:  Roger Lawrence and Mike Harris 

Board of Adjustments: Judy Duncan, Ronnie Wells, Jonathan Jennings and Gary  

Dycus 

Library Advisory Board: Martha Green, Boyce Ann Miller, Jo Crawford,  

Airport Advisory Board:  Mac Vaughn 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2.  A training presentation and discussion was held regarding City Goals and 

Comprehensive Plan, Texas Open Meetings Act, Conflicts of Interest, Texas 



Public Information Act, Parliamentary Procedure, General Duties and Functions 

of the City Council and City Boards and Commissions and associated matters. 

 

3. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 

  

 

                                                  ______________________________ 

                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 9, 2019 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas on 

the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Geoff Horn, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Lance Hall, 

Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director; Hung Mai, IT Specialist; 

Jonathan Soresbee, Community Development Specialist; Kathrine Thogersen, Administrative 

Assistant/Deputy City Secretary; Jeff Greer, Director of Utilities; Michael Mize, Lieutenant; 

Shawn Myatt, Police Chief/Assistant City Manager; Kenneth Nobles, Utility Supervisor; Richard 

Green, W/W Utility Technician; Peggy Johnson, H. R. Director, Ernest Menefee, W/W Utility 

Technician; Chris Watson, Police Officer, David Ellison, Patrol Sargeant, and David Kerney, 

Firefighter. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson, Andrea Perrard, Justin Meyer, Mark Meyer, 

Arlo Roberson, Gina Nobles, Walldean Sapp, Lorene Brown, Loretta Hayes, George Davis, Todd 

Wisner, Thomas Pack, Brian McDonald, Matt Morse and Alan Munger. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt.  The City Council, staff members 

and visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas 

Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  None. 

 

4.  Staff report: 

 



(a) George Davis, with Amaresco, gave an update on meter replacement, lighting retro-

fit and SCADA installation; 

 

(b) Police Chief/Assistant City Manager Shawn Myatt introduced a couple of new police 

officer to the City Council and announced several employee promotions; 

 

(c) City Manager Brad Stafford and the City Council recognized employees with five, ten, 

fifteen and twenty years of service to the City of Navasota; 

  

(d) There were not any Board and Commission updates; 

 

(e) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 

 

5.  Councilmember Grant Holt moved to approve Resolution No. 665-19, accepting Dove 

Landing and Dove Court water, sewer, street and drainage infrastructure, seconded by 

Councilmember Geoff Horn and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 

carried. 

 

6.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve Resolution No. 666-19, in support of 

proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and waiver of permit fees in 

the amount of $250.00, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried.  Resident Lorene Brown and a couple 

of other citizens spoke about the need for repairs at their apartment complex. 

 

7.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve Change Order No. 1 in the amount of 

$42,162.50, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember 

voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

8. A report on the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers study of Cedar Creek was presented. 

 

9. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda items which 

include the minutes and expenditures for the month of November 2019; the second 

reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: 

Agriculture/Open Space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally 

described as A0046 J. Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from 

A/O: Agriculture/Open Space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 

square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A00046 J. Moore, 

Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open space 

district to R-2: Medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties 

legally described as A0055-6 D. Tyler, Tract 6, Part 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D. Tyler, 

Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D. Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in 

Navasota, Grimes County, the second reading of Ordinance No. 911-19, extending the 



boundary limits of the City of Navasota, providing for the annexation of approximately 

102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler 

Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with 

each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

10. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 

  

 

                                                  ______________________________ 

                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 











































































































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 12. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in
Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.074, Texas
Government Code, Personnel Matters, concerning the annual
evaluation of the City Manager and possible amendment to the
employment agreement for the City Manager.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City Manager's employment anniversary is in January.  The
City Council performs the annual performance evaluation
annually in January.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends City Council evaluate the performance of the
City Manager and possible amendment to the employment
agreement with the City Manager.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Employment Contract

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578351929x_at.pdf


























































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 13. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Reconvene in open session.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is _________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 14. AGENDA DATE: January 13,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Executive Session
Item relating to Section 551.074, Texas Government Code,
Personnel Matters, concerning the annual evaluation of the City
Manager and possible amendment to the employment
agreement for the City Manager.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City Manager's employment anniversary is in January.  The
City Council performs the annual performance evaluation
annually in January.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends City Council evaluate the performance of the
City Manager and possible amendment to the employment
agreement with the City Manager.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. PLANNING CALENDAR
2. MUNICIPAL COURT REPORT FOR DECEMBER 2019
3. THANK YOU NOTE FROM PAT GRUNER
4. EMAIL FROM ALTICE
5. LETTER FROM GRIMES COUNTY APPRAISAL
DISTRICT

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578513538x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578513588x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578515834x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578515864x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1578515964x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 

JANUARY 13, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 12/30/2019 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Election update; (b) Results for Home for the Holidays; (c) Texas Birthday 

Bash update; (d) Results on Blue Santa; (e) Results on No shave November results;  
      (f) Utility Department update; (g) Foster Street Drainage update; (h) Board and 

Commission update; and (i) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.   Public Hearing – rezoning of properties – River Havens 
6.   1st reading of Ordinance No. 912-20 - rezoning of properties – River Havens 
7.   Resolution No. 667-20 - in support of Navasota Landing Apartment improvements 
8.   1st reading of Ordinance No. 913-20 - Uniform Right-of-Way management 
9.   Appointments to Boards and Commissions 
10. Quarterly Investment Report ending December 31, 2019 
11. Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of December 2019; and(b) Expenditures for the 

month of December 2019 
12. Executive Session:  Annual evaluation of City Manager 
13. Reconvene in open session 
14. Action on Executive Session 
15. Adjourn 

 
 

JANUARY 27, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 01/13/2020 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Staff recognition for years of service; (b) Railroad Commission Audit 

Report; (c) Board and Commission update; and (d) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.   Census presentation 
6.   Racial Profiling report for 2019 
7.   1st reading of Ordinance No. ______ - Utilities (Lupe) 
8.   Procedures for Council meetings 
9.   Board and Commission appointments 
10. Consent agenda: (a) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 912-20 - rezoning of properties – River 

Havens; (b) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 913-20 - Uniform Right-of-Way management 
11. Adjourn 

 
 

FEBRUARY 10, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 01/27/2020 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.   Order calling City Election for May 2, 2020 
6.   Discussion of new session of NCU 
7.   Consent agenda: (a) Minutes from January 2020; (b) Expenditures from January 2020; and 

(c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _____ - Utilities (Lupe) 
8.   Adjourn 

 



 
 

FEBRUARY 24, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 2/10/2020 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.   Adjourn 

 



                                    O F F I C E   O F   C O U R T   A D M I N I S T R A T I O N

                                             T E X A S   J U D I C A L   C O U N C I L

                                              Official Municipal Court Monthly Report

                     Month   December            Year   2019

           Municipal Court for the City of  NAVASOTA

           Presiding Judge   PATRICIA GRUNER

                      If new, date assumed office _________________

     Court Mailing Address   200 E. MCALPINE

                      City   NAVASOTA, TXZip    77868

              Phone Number   936-825-6268

                Fax Number   936-825-7280

      Court's Public Email   RJESSIE@NAVASOTATX.GOV

           Court's Website   http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV

 

   THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE RECORDS OF THIS COURT.

   Prepared by _________________________________________________________________

          Date _____________________    Phone: (936) 825-6268

  PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM NO LATER THAN 20 DAYS FOLLOWING THE END OF THE MONTH REPORTED TO:

                         OFFICE OF COURT ADMINISTRATION

                                 P.O. BOX 12066

                                   AUSTIN, TX

                                   78711-2066

                             PHONE: (512) 463-1625

                              Fax: (512) 936-2423

http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV


 1/08/2020 09:21 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    1

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  December    YEAR  2019                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

1. Total Cases Pending First of Month:                     |        392|          0|         22|        247|         34|         92|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Active Cases                                         |         62|          0|          1|         21|         16|         10|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Inactive Cases                                       |        330|          0|         21|        226|         18|         82|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

2. New Cases Filed                                         |         17|          0|          0|          5|          0|          2|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

3. Cases Reactivated                                       |          2|          0|          0|          3|          1|          3|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

4. All Other Cases Added                                   |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

5. Total Cases on Docket                                   |         81|          0|          1|         29|         17|         15|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

6. Dispositions Prior to Court Appearance or Trial:        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Uncontested Dispositions                             |          9|          0|          0|          2|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

7. Dispositions at Trial:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Convictions:                                         |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) Guilty Plea or Nolo Contendere                     |          6|          0|          0|          5|          2|          6|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     3) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Acquittals:                                          |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          0|          0|          0|          2|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



 1/08/2020 09:21 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  December    YEAR  2019                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

8. Compliance Dismissals:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. After Driver Safety Course                           |          5|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. After Deferred Disposition                           |          4|          0|          0|          1|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. After Teen Court                                     |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   d. After Tobacco Awareness Course                       |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   e. After Treatment for Chemical Dependency              |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   f. After Proof of Financial Responsibility              |          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   g. All Other Transportation Code Dismissals             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

9. All Other Dispositions                                  |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

10. Total Cases Disposed                                   |         24|          0|          0|         10|          2|          6|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

11. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

12. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |        385|          0|         22|        242|         32|         88|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |         57|          0|          1|         19|         15|          9|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |        328|          0|         21|        223|         17|         79|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

13. Show Cause Hearings Held                               |         19|          0|          0|          4|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

14. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. After Trial                                         |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



 1/08/2020 09:21 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    3

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CIVIL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |                |

MONTH  December    YEAR  2019                              |  TOTAL CASES   |

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

1.  Total Cases Pending First of Month:                    |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

2.  New Cases Filed                                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

3.  Cases Reactivated                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

4.  All Other Cases Added                                  |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

5.  Total Cases on Docket                                  |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

6.  Uncontested Civil Fines or Penalties                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

7.  Default Judgments                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

8.  Agreed Judgments                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

9.  Trial/Hearing by Judge/Hearing Officer                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

10. Trial by Jury                                          |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

11. Dismissed for Want of Prosecution                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

12. All Other Dispositions                                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

13. Total Cases Disposed                                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

14. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

15. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

16. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. After Trial                                         |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+



 1/08/2020 09:21 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    4

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

JUVENILE/MINOR ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                  |                |

MONTH  December    YEAR  2019                                                    |     TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

1. Transportation Code Cases Filed                                               |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

2. Non-driving Alcoholic Beverage Code Cases Filed                               |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

3. Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol Cases Filed                            |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

4. Drug Paraphernalia Cases Filed                                                |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

5. Tobacco Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

6. Truancy Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

7. Education Code (Except Failure to Attend) Cases Filed                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

8. Violation of Local Daytime Curfew Ordinance Cases Filed                       |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

9. All Other Non-traffic Fine-only Cases Filed                                   |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

10. Transfer to Juvenile Court:                                                  |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Mandatory Transfer                                                          |               0|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Discretionary Transfer                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

11. Accused of Contempt and Referred to Juvenile Court (Delinquent Conduct)      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

12. Held in Contempt by Criminal Court (Fined and/or Denied Driving Privileges)  |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

13. Juvenile Statement Magistrate Warning:                                       |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Warnings Administered                                                       |               0|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Statements Certified                                                        |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

14. Detention Hearings Held                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

15. Orders for Non-secure Custody Issued                                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

16. Parent Contributing to Nonattendance Cases Filed                             |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------



 1/08/2020 09:21 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    5

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                   |                | NUMBER REQUESTS |

MONTH  December    YEAR  2019                                                     |  NUMBER GIVEN  |   FOR COUNSEL   |

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

1. Magistrate Warnings:                                                           |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                         |               5|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                   |               0|                0|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                     |               0|                0|

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

2. Arrest Warrants Issued:                                                                         |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                                          |                0|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                                    |                1|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                                      |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

3. Capiases Pro Fine Issued                                                                        |                9|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

4. Search Warrants Issued                                                                          |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

5. Warrants for Fire, Health and Code Inspections Filed                                            |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

6. Examining Trials Conducted                                                                      |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

7. Emergency Mental Health Hearings Held                                                           |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

8. Magistrate's Order for Emergency Protection Issued                                              |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

9. Magistrate's Orders for Ignition Interlock Device Issued                                        |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

10. All Other Magistrates's Orders Issued Requiring Conditions for Release on Bond                 |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

11. Drivers's License Denial, Revocation or Suspension Hearings Held                               |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

12. Disposition of Stolen Property Hearings Held                                                   |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

13. Peace Bond Hearings Held                                                                       |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



 1/08/2020 09:21 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    6

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

14. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Community Service:                            |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Partial Satisfaction                                                                          |                0|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Full Satisfaction                                                                             |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

15. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Jail Credit                                   |                8|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

16. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                       |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

17. Amount of Fines and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                           |            $0.00|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

18. Fines, Court Costs and Other Amounts Collected:                                                |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Kept by City                                                                                  |        $5,676.91|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Remitted to State                                                                             |        $2,679.69|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Total                                                                                         |        $8,356.60|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



 1/08/2020 09:21 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    7

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

Run By:             rjessie

Report Type:        Summary

Date Range:         12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

Finalize Report:    Yes

Correction:         No

      *** END OF REPORT ***














	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Remarks of visitors form
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Update on the May 2, 2020 City Election;
Actualizacion de las elecciones municipales del 2 de mayo de 2020
(b) Results from Home for the Holidays;
(c) Texas Birthday Bash update;
(d) Results from Blue Santa;
(e) Results from No Razor November event;
(f) Utility Department update;
(g) Foster Street Drainage update;
(h) Board and Commission update; and
(i) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	 Election Notice

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and testimony regarding zoning changes initiated by the Planning and Zoning Commission, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to M-1: light industrial district for the properties legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 27, Acres 3.03, and A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger, residential district for the properties legally described as, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, Lot 3-1, Acres 1.26, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 2-1, Acres 7.7, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 1-1, Acres 14.619, and A0002 D Arnold, Tract 34-2, Acres 10.84, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 18, Par 5, Acres 27.76 and S8212 - Savensky Subdivision, Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Staff Report

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 912-20, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to M-1: light industrial district for the properties legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 27, Acres 3.03, and A0046 J Moore, Tract 10, Acres 2.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to R-1C: low density, single dwelling unit, 2 acre lot or larger, residential district for the properties legally described as, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, Lot 3-1, Acres 1.26, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 2-1, Acres 7.7, S8019 - River Haven, block 1, lot 1-1, Acres 14.619, and A0002 D Arnold, Tract 34-2, Acres 10.84, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open Space District to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0002. D Arnold, Tract 18, Par 5, Acres 27.76 and S8212 - Savensky Subdivision, Block 1, Lot 1, Acres 1, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Ordinance No. 912-20

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 667-20, in support of proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and waiver of permit fees.
	 Resolution No. 667-20

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and possible action on Ordinance No. 913-20, Uniform Right-of-Way management ordinance.
	 Ordinance No. 913-20

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consideration and possible action on appointments to boards and commissions.
	 Todd Matthews Application

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Review the City of Navasota Quarterly Investment Report for quarter ending 12-31-19.

	 4th quarter 2019 investment report

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or a City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda.
Consent Items Are:
A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of December, 2019;
B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of December, 2019;









first reading of Ordinance No. 892-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to B-1: General Business District for the property legally described as A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 31-1, 2, Par 1, Acres 2.35, 31-1, 2, Par 1, changing the current zoning from split A/O: Agriculture/open space district/ B-1: General Business District to B-1: General Business District for the properties legally described as A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 50, Acres 3.209, Thane 90 Subdivision, Lot A, Acres 2.057, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district, for the properties legally described as A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 51-4, Acres 25.6104, A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 48-7, Acres 18, A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 41-2, Acres 5.4156, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.


Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Minutes 12-02-2019 - Special
	 Minutes - 12-09-2019
	 Expenditures for December 2019

	Agenda Item No. 12 -  Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.074, Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, concerning the annual evaluation of the City Manager and possible amendment to the employment agreement for the City Manager.
	 Employment Contract

	Agenda Item No. 13 -  Reconvene in open session. 
	Agenda Item No. 14 -  Consideration and possible action on Executive Session Item relating to Section 551.074, Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, concerning the annual evaluation of the City Manager and possible amendment to the employment agreement for the City Manager.
	Agenda Item No. 15 -  1. Planning Calendar

	 Planning Calendar
	 Municipal Court Report for December 2019
	 Thank you note from Pat Gruner
	 Email from Altice
	 Letter from Grimes County Appraisal District


